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1. Question: We really appreciate the new stakeholder and utility processes, community engagement, 
and iterative report development and feedback you've added - in addition to a very rigorous study 
design. Considering these activities in the "core" tasks, our initial budget estimates are considerably 
higher than $300,000...and that excludes optional tasks like community outreach for recruiting, which 
I agree would bolster the study. We're curious how open Energy Trust may be in bids considerably over 
$300,000, or if that would be a non-starter. 

 
Answer: We would certainly consider proposals with budget estimates that are substantially higher 
than the stated budget in the RFP. However, we’d like to see options for lower cost projects as well, 
so that we can make an informed decision about what we’d be giving up by spending less and what 
we’d gain by spending more. The low budget scenario described in the RFP should be within the stated 
budget for the project and describe the compromises needed to achieve the lower cost. This may 
include reducing or removing certain activities that are not critical to the completion of the study. 
 
One goal of this RFP is to collect competitive bids to understand the true cost of the work. We will be 
looking for proposals that do a good job of balancing cost with using robust methods to achieve the 
research goals. Cost is not the only or even the most important consideration, as long as it’s within 
reason—for instance, we almost certainly would not select a proposal that was above $500,000. We 
don’t have that much flexibility in our budget and that would also trigger our contract size threshold 
requiring Board approval. 

 
2. Question: The RFP identifies several variables of interest for which the sample design must achieve 

10% precision at 90% confidence, specifically, participation status, race/ethnicity, household income 
category, homeownership status, housing type, utility service, geographic region, and urbanization 
level. Does Energy Trust require 90/10 samples for any specific crosstabulations of these variables? 
For example, does it require 90/10 samples for race/ethnicity separately for each participation status? 
Also, does the 90/10 requirement by participation status apply separately to both levels of 
participants (recent participant and past participant)? 

 
Answer: No. Although we would like to see crosstabulations of these and other variables, they don’t 
need to achieve 10 percent relative precision at 90 percent confidence. The 90/10 
confidence/precision requirement for the sample design relates to the desired precision level for 
survey responses and major outcome variables cut by each of the primary analysis variables 
(participation status, race/ethnicity, household income category, homeownership status, housing 
type, utility service, geographic region, and urbanization level). For example, we would like to see 
90/10 precision for the participation rates for each major race/ethnicity category listed. We would 
also like to see participation rates reported for each racial group by income category, and while we’d 
like to see somewhat reliable results, this crosstabulation would not need to meet the 90/10 
requirement. 

 
3. Question: Among the race/ethnic groups identified in Table 1 is Middle Eastern or North African. 

This group makes up a very small proportion of the Oregon population, such that attempting to 
achieve 90/10 samples for it would create a significant challenge. Can this group be collapsed with 
"other" for the purpose of sampling? 

 
Answer: We will leave it to the respondents to determine the best and most realistic sampling plan. 
Our intention is to recruit a sufficient number of respondents from each of the major racial groups 
identified in the RFP to be able to report results for each with 10 percent relative precision at 90 



percent confidence. However, if the respondent finds that goal to be unrealistic, or that it would 
require a very large number of total responses to achieve, or would cause a large increase in the 
budget, then they are welcome to propose an alternative sampling plan and alternative 
categorization of the race/ethnicity variable, or any of the other analysis variables. The rationale for 
such changes should be clearly explained in the proposal. 

 
4. Question: Similar question for primary heating and cooling systems. Some of the primary heating 

systems (oil/propane/bottled gas, wood, other, no heat) have very low incidence in Oregon. The 
same is true for DHP as primary cooling system. Can some of those systems be grouped for the 
purpose of achieving a 90/10 sample, or can the 90/10 sample requirement be waived for those? 

 
Answer: Primary heating system and primary cooling system are not listed as primary analysis 
variables and thus are not subject to the 90/10 confidence/precision requirement. However, we 
would like to see a robust sample design that provides somewhat reliable results for all proposed 
analyses. As stated above, respondents are free to propose alternative sampling plans and 
alternative categorizations of variables, if they deem that such changes are needed. The rationale 
for such changes should be clearly explained in the proposal. 

 
5. Question: The RFP indicates that utilities will carry out concurrent recruiting by sending emails to 

customers. For approximately what percentage of customers do the utilities have email addresses? 
 
Answer: To clarify, some of Energy Trust’s partner utilities may be able to send recruiting emails to 
customers on behalf of Energy Trust, pending discussions with each utility. Some of the utilities may 
not be willing or able to fulfill this request. For those utilities that can help recruit for the survey, 
their customer email coverage varies, but our understanding is that they would be able to send 
email communications to between half and three-quarters of their residential customers. As noted 
in the RFP, the utility email lists are totally independent of contact information that Energy Trust has 
on file. 

 
6. Question: Will Energy Trust consider a scenario in which screener questions are used to screen out 

survey respondents that do not contribute to completion quotas that have not yet been filled – that 
is, respondents that belong to groups for which all completion quotas have already been filled? 

 
Answer: Yes, we would consider such a proposal. Such a strategy may have merit in reducing the total 
number of survey completes while targeting respondents that are needed to achieve the precision 
requirements for less populous groups. 

 
7. Question: Does the minimum 11-point font size requirement apply to tables? Specifically, may table 

text be 10-point font? 
 

Answer: 10-point font in tables would be fine. 
 
8. Question: What is the intended survey size for this survey? What is an estimated range of number of 

people the selected vendor would need to contact throughout the survey? 
 

Answer: Respondents should propose a sample design for the survey that achieves the stated 
precision requirements and research objectives. This includes developing a proposed total sample size 
and number of survey completes, as well as samples sizes and number of completes for each sample 



stratum, along with the estimated precision of results for each group. Ideally, the sample design will 
also describe the sample size and number of completes estimated for each oversampled category as 
well as each category within the primary analysis variables listed in the RFP. See the “Sample Design 
and Sampling” and “Task 2: Sampling” sections of the RFP for additional guidance. The section titled 
“Task 2: Sampling” states the following: 
 

Proposals should describe the respondent’s approach to creating a stratified sample 
design that will achieve the research objectives and obtain sufficient precision for specific 
customer groups. Please provide a detailed, proposed sample design, including estimated 
sample sizes and completion targets for each stratum, as well as estimates of precision. 
Respondents should also provide estimates of the response rates they expect overall and 
for specific strata groups. 


